

# APPENDIX E: Resources and Websites Consulted

---

## RESOURCES CONSULTED

Anders, Fred and Stephen Leatherman.

- 1987 *Effects of Off-road Vehicles on Coastal Foredunes at Fire Island, New York, USA*. Environmental Management, Volume 11-1. Pp. 45-52.

Archetype Architecture, Inc.

- 1997 "Sailor's Haven Sustainable Student Camp: Eco Module Prototype" Prepared for the National Park Service, North Atlantic Regional Office. Boston, MA.

Art, H.W.

- 1992 "The Impacts of Hurricane Gloria, Deer and Trails: The Sunken Forest, Fire Island National Seashore, Fire Island, New York." Technical Report NPS/NAROSS/NRTR-87/01. USDA Department of the Interior, National Park Service, North Atlantic Region. 168 pp.
- 1987 "Patterns of Community Dynamics in the Sunken Forest: 1967 to 1985 and 1985 to 1986." Unpublished report to the North Atlantic Regional Office of the U.S. National Park Service. 66 pp + appendices.
- 1976 "Ecological Studies of the Sunken Forest, Fire Island National Seashore, New York." *National Park Service, Scientific Monograph Series*, No. 7. 237 pp.

Barrera, D., J. Blick, J. Erz, M. Hoyos, and C. Suidzinski

- 2007 *Threatened & Endangered Species Monitoring Program 2007 Summary*. U.S. National Park Service, Fire Island National Seashore. Patchogue, NY. 29pp.

Bolger, Timothy.

- 2008 *Meeting of the Minds: Gas, FIMP and Ticks Concern Saltaire*. Fire Island News, July 8.

Briggs, N., E. G. Schneider, J. Sones, and K. Puryear

- 2010 *Inventory of Odonata (Dragonflies and Damselflies) at Fire Island National Seashore*. U.S. Department of the Interior, National Park Service Natural Resource Technical Report NPA/NCBN/NRTR – 2010/295.

Brookins, Karl, Ph.D. and Jeffrey Cross, Ph.D.

- 2011 *Use of Marine Recreational Fishery Information in Planning and Management at Fire Island National Seashore – Draft*. Natural Resource Stewardship and Science. National Park Service. Fort Collins, CO.

Brown, J., N. Mitchell and M. Beresford, (Eds.).

- 2005 *The Protected Landscape Approach: Linking Nature, Culture and Community*. Gland, Switzerland and Cambridge, U.K.: IUCN.

Caldecutt, W. J.

- 1997 *Freshwater Wetlands Delineation and Inventory of Wetland Herpetological Species on Fire Island National Seashore*. Department of Ecology and Evolution, State University of New York, Stony Brook, NY.

Cashin Associates.

- 2009 *Recreational Clamming Survey of Great South Bay, Long Island, New York*. Prepared for The Nature Conservancy, Cold Spring Harbor, New York.

Collier, Krista, Henry Bokuniewicz, and Ruth Coffey

- 2005 “Submarine Groundwater Discharge along Fire Island, NY (abstract).” Fire Island National Seashore 5th Biennial Science and Cultural Resource Conference.

Conover, D. O., R. Cerrato, and W. Wise

- 2005 *Conservation and Management of the Living Marine Resources of Fire Island National Seashore*. U.S. Department of the Interior, National Park Service Technical Report NPS/NER/NRTR – 2005/023.

Cook R.

- 2010 Field Data for the Inventory of Amphibians and Reptiles of Fire Island National Seashore. Generic Dataset-2165534. Generic Dataset

Cook RP and Others.

- 2010 *Inventory of Amphibians and Reptiles at the William Floyd Estate, Fire Island National Seashore*. Natural Resource Technical Report. NPS/NCBN/NRTR—2010/380. National Park Service, Natural Resource Program Center. Fort Collins, Colorado. Published Report-2165422.

Cullinane Thomas, C., C. Huber, and L. Koontz

- 2014 *2012 National Park Visitor Spending Effects: Economic Contributions to Local Communities, States and the Nation*. Natural Resource Report NPS/NRSS/EQD/NRR – 2014/765. National Park Service, Fort Collins, Colorado.

De Calesta, D. S.

- 1992 “Impact of Deer on Species Diversity of Allegheny Hardwood Stands.” *Proceedings of Northeastern Weed Science Society*. 46:135.

Dillon, C. J.

- 2000 *Mosquitoes and Public Health: Protecting a Resource in the Face of Public Fear*. Fire Island National Seashore. National Park Service. Patchogue, NY.

Duffield, Dr. John and Chris Neher

- 2008 *Fire Island National Seashore Off-Road Vehicle Regulations Environmental Assessment: Socioeconomic Analysis*. The University of Montana. Missoula, Montana. March 15, 2008.

Ecohealth Inc.

- 1998 *Damminix Tick Tubes Test Results on Fire Island N.Y.*

Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA)

- 2009a *Flood Insurance Rate Map Suffolk County, New York (All Jurisdictions)*. Panel 694 of 1026. Map Number 36103Co694H. (Patchogue)
- 2009b *Flood Insurance Rate Map Suffolk County, New York (All Jurisdictions)*. Panel 739 of 1026. Map Number 36103Co739 H (Mastic Beach).
- 2009c *Flood Insurance Rate Map Suffolk County, New York (All Jurisdictions)*. Panel 912 of 1026. Map Number 36103Co912 H (Fire Island Pines/Cherry Grove).

Fire Island Ferries, Inc.

xxxx 2008 and 2009 Ferry Schedules.

Fischer, James.

2010 *Investigating the Role of White-footed Mice in the Transmission of Lyme Disease on Fire Island, New York*. Thesis. State University of New York. SUNY-ESF.

Fletcher, L. and E.R. Kintz

1979 *Preliminary Report No. 3, Cultural Resource Study, Fire Island National Seashore, Patchogue, New York (Contract no. CX1600-8-0048)*. Prepared for the National Park Service, North Atlantic Regional Office, Boston, MA.

Ginsberg, Howard S.

2005 *Vector-borne diseases of Fire Island, New York* (Fire Island National Seashore Science Synthesis Paper). Technical Report NPS/NER/NRTR--2005/018. National Park Service. Boston, MA.

Ginsberg, Howard S. and Elyes Zhioua.

1996 *Nymphal survival and habitat distribution of Ixodes scapularis and Amblyomma americanum ticks (Acari: Ixodidae) on Fire Island, New York, USA* (Abstract). *Experimental & Applied Acarology*, vol. 20, pp. 533-544.

1999 *Influence of Deer Abundance on the Abundance of Questing Adult Ixodes scapularis*.

Graves Lanfer, Ashley and M. Taylor.

2005 *Immigrant Engagement in Public Open Space: Strategies for the New Boston*. Barr Foundation, Boston, MA.

Gray & Pape, Inc.

2005 *Final Report: Archeological Overview and Assessment of the Fire Island National Seashore, Suffolk County, New York*. (G&P Project No. 04-47602). Prepared for Vector Resources, Inc. Annandale, VA: T. Fugate and B. McDonald.

Grossman, D .H., D. Faber-Langendoen, A.S. Weakley, M. Anderson, P. Bourgeron, R. Crawford, K. Goodin, S. Landaal, K. Metzler, K.D. Patterson, M. Pyne, M. Reid, and L. Sneddon

1998 *International Classification of Ecological Communities: Terrestrial Vegetation of the United States. Volume I. The National Vegetation Classification System: Development, Status and Applications*. The Nature Conservancy, Arlington, VA, USA. 126 pp.

Hapke, C.J., Himmelstoss, E.A., Kratzmann, M., List, J.H., and Thieler, E.R.,

2010 *National assessment of shoreline change; historical shoreline change along the New England and Mid-Atlantic coasts*: U.S. Geological Survey Open-File Report 2010-1118, 57 p.

Hapke, C.J.; Lentz, E.E.; Gayes, P.T.; McCoy, C.A.; Hehre, R.; Schwab, W.C., and Williams, S.J.,

2010 *A review of sediment budget imbalances along Fire Island, New York: can nearshore geologic framework and patterns of shoreline change explain the deficit?* *Journal of Coastal Research*, 26(3), 510-522. West Palm Beach (Florida), ISSN 0749-0208.

Hinga, K.R.

2005 *Water quality and ecology of Great South Bay* (Fire Island National Seashore Science Synthesis Paper). Technical Report NPS/NER/NRTR—2005/019. National Park Service. Boston, MA.

- Horsley, S. B., S. L. Stout, and D. S. de Calesta  
 2003 "White-tailed Deer Impact on the Vegetation Dynamics of a Northern Hardwood Forest." *Ecological Applications* 13(1):98-118.
- Human Dimensions Research Unit, Department of Natural Resources, Cornell University.  
 2007 *Deer People, and Parks: Perspectives of Residents in Communities Near Fire Island National Seashore*. Ithaca, NY: Siemer, W.F., K.M. Leong, D.J. Decker, and K.K. Smith.
- International Panel on Climate Change (IPCC)  
 2007 "Climate Change 2007: The Physical Science Basis. Contribution of Working Group I to the Fourth Assessment Report of the Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change." Edited by S. Solomon, D. Qin, M. Manning, Z. Chen, M. Marquis, K. B. Averyt, M. Tignor, and H. L. Miller. Cambridge University Press, Cambridge, United Kingdom and New York, NY.
- Kassner, J. and J.A. Black.  
 1983 *Fire Island Inlet, New York, management of a complex inlet*. Shore and Beach. October 1983. Pp. 3-8
- Kaufman, Ned and Charles Starks.  
 2008 *Land Regulation at Fire Island National Seashore, A History and Analysis, 1964 - 2004*. University of Massachusetts, Amherst, MA.
- Klopfer, S.D.; A. Olivero, L. Sneddon, and J. Lungren.  
 2002 Final Report of the NPS Vegetation Mapping Project at Fire Island National Seashore. Conservation Management Institute, GIS and Remote Sensing Division, College of Natural Resources, Virginia Tech, Blacksburg, VA.
- Koppelman, Lee E. and Seth Forman.  
 2008 *Fire Island National Seashore - A History*. SUNY Press. Albany, NY.
- Kratzmann, Meredith G., and Hapke, Cheryl J.,  
 2008 *Anthropogenic influences on the dune/beach morphology of a moderately developed barrier island: Fire Island, New York*. Technical Report NPS/NER/NRTR—2008/131. National Park Service. Boston, MA.
- Krista C., H. Bokuniewicz, and R. Coffey  
 2005 "Submarine Groundwater Discharge along Fire Island, NY (abstract)." *Fire Island National Seashore 5th Biennial Science and Cultural Resource Conference*.
- LaMonica, Barbara.  
 2008 *Revolutionary Figure Leaves His Mark*.
- Landres, P., C. Barns, J.G. Dennis, T. Devine, P. Geissler, C.S. McCasland, L. Merigliano, J. Seastrand, and R. Swain  
 2008 *Keeping It Wild: An Interagency Strategy to Monitor Trends in Wilderness Character across the National Wilderness Preservation System*. General Technical Report RMRS-GTR-212. Fort Collins, Colorado: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service, Rocky Mountain Research Station.

Landres, P., S. Boutcher, L. Merigliano, C. Barns, D. Davis, T. Hall, S. Henry, B. Hunter, P. Janiga, M. Laker, A. McPherson, D. Powell, M. Rowan, and S. Sater.

- 2005 *Monitoring selected conditions related to wilderness character: a national framework*. (Gen. Tech. Rep. RMRS-GTR-151). Fort Collins, CO: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Forest Service, Rocky Mountain Research Station.

Loehman, R., and G. Anderson.

- 2009 *Understanding the science of climate change: talking points - impacts to the Atlantic coast*. Natural Resource Report NPS/NRPC/NRR—2009/095. National Park Service, Fort Collins, Colorado.

Long Island Regional Planning Council

- 2010 *Sustainable Strategies for Long Island 2035 – Long Island Regional Comprehensive Sustainability Plan*. Syosset, New York.

Low, Setha M. Ph.D., Dana H. Taplin, Ph.D. Andrew Kirby, Ph.D., and Mara Heppen

- 2006 *Ethnographic Overview and Assessment Fire Island National Seashore*.

Marquis, D. A., R. L. Ernst, and S. L. Stout

- 1992 *Prescribing Silvicultural Treatments in Hardwood Stands in the Alleghenies*. Revised. General Technical Report NE-96. Northeastern Forest Experiment Station, U.S. Forest Service.

McCormick and Associates

- 1975 *Environmental Inventory of Fire Island National Seashore and the William Floyd Estate, Suffolk County, New York*. U.S. Department of Interior, National Park Service. Denver Service Center, Denver, CO. 46pp.

McElroy, Anne et al.

- 2008a *Assessment of Natural Resource Conditions in and Adjacent to Fire Island National Seashore*.  
2008b *Assessment of Natural Resources and Watershed Conditions for Fire Island National Seashore*.

Metropolitan Transit Authority

- 2008 Long Island Rail Road System Map

Mitra, S. and J. Putnam

- 1999 *Birds of Fire Island National Seashore*. National Park Service Publication. Fire Island National Seashore, Patchogue, NY. Available on the Internet at: <<http://www.nps.gov/fiis/naturescience/birds.htm>>. Accessed on June 29, 2009.

Nardiello, Carolyn.

- 2008 *Shelter and Fire Islands Try Device to Kill Ticks*.

National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration.

- 2007 Letter regarding Mosquito Management Plan.

National Park Service

- xxxx Planning meeting notes for GMP.  
xxxx *Fire Island National Seashore Superintendent's Compendium*.  
xxxx *Special Regulations, Areas of the National Park System*.  
xxxx Drawings and reports related to the new ferry landing.  
xxxx *Fire Island National Seashore: Zoning Standards*.

- xxxx Patchogue Tax Map.
- 1974 *Historic Resource Study: The William Floyd Estate.*
- 1977 *Fire Island National Seashore General Management Plan.*
- 1978 *Environmental Review/Negative Declaration, Development, William Floyd Estate.*
- 1979a William Floyd Estate National Register Nomination.
- 1979b *Historic Resource Study, Fire Island National Seashore, Long Island, N.Y.*
- 1980 *Wilderness Study/Preliminary Wilderness Proposal and Draft Supplement to the Final Environmental Statement General Management Plan.*
- 1981 Fire Island Light Station National Register Nomination.
- 1984a *Legislative History of Fire Island National Seashore.*
- 1984b *Fire Island National Seashore Land Protection Plan.*
- 1992 *Fire Island National Seashore Water Resources Scoping Report.* Technical Report NPS/NRWRD/NRTR-92/11.
- 1994 *Interpretive Prospectus: Fire Island National Seashore.*
- 2002a *Environmental Assessment for Proposed Passenger Center, Ferry Terminal, and Park Headquarters Building, Renovation of the PMF Maintenance Building and Replacement of the NPS Patchogue River Bulkhead.*
- 2002b *Historical and Recent Shoreline Changes, Impacts of Moriches Inlet, and Relevance to Island Breaching at Fire Island National Seashore, NY.*
- 2002c *Long Island Historical Photos – 1962 Ash Wednesday Storm – Fire Island.*
- 2002d *Director’s Order 18: Wildlife Fire Management*
- 2003a *Short-term Community Storm Surge Protection Plan Environmental Assessment.*
- 2003b *Negotiated Rulemaking Advisory Committee for Off-Road Driving Regulations at Fire Island National Seashore: Final Consensus Agreement.*
- 2004a *Fire Island National Seashore Business Plan, Fiscal Year 2004.*
- 2004b *Fire Island National Seashore Public Use Counting and Reporting Instructions.*
- 2004c *Fire Island Light Station Cultural Landscapes Inventory.*
- 2005a *Wildland Fire Management Plan.*
- 2005b *Bay Shoreline Physical Processes (Fire Island National Seashore Science Synthesis Paper).* Technical Report NPS/NER/NRTR-2005/020.
- 2005c *The Coastal Geomorphology of Fire Island: A Portrait of Continuity and Change (Fire Island National Seashore Science Synthesis Paper).* Technical Report NPS/NER/NRTR-2005/021.
- 2005d *Water Quality and Ecology of Great South Bay (Fire Island National Seashore Science Synthesis Paper).* Technical Report NPS/NER/NRTR-2005/019.
- 2005e *Conservation and Management of the Living Marine Resources of Fire Island National Seashore (Fire Island National Seashore Science Synthesis Paper).* Technical Report NPS/NER/NRTR-2005/023.
- 2005f *White-tailed Deer Ecology and Management on Fire Island National Seashore (Fire Island National Seashore Science Synthesis Paper).* Technical Report NPS/NER/NRTR-2005/022.
- 2005g *Vector-borne Diseases on Fire Island, New York (Fire Island National Seashore Science Synthesis Paper).* Technical Report NPS/NER/NRTR—2005/018.
- 2005h *Fire Island National Seashore Zoning Standards.*
- 2006a *Fire Island Communities Civic Engagement Roundtable.*
- 2006b *Fire Island Soundings.*



- 2006c *William Floyd Estate Cultural Landscapes Inventory: Revised.*
- 2006d *Collection Management Plan.*
- 2007a *Fire Island National Seashore Interim Report.*
- 2007b *Fire Island National Seashore General Management Plan Project Schedule.*
- 2007c *Summary Report Stakeholders' Foundation Workshop: June 25-26, 2007.*
- 2007d *Recommendations for a Barrier Island Breach Management Program for Fire Island National Seashore Including the Otis Pike High Dune Wilderness Area, Long Island, New York. Technical Report NPS/NER/NRTR--2007/075. Abstract only.*
- 2007e *Evaluation of Marsh Development Processes at Fire Island National Seashore (New York); Recent and Historic Perspectives. Technical Report NPS/NER/NRTR-2007/089. Abstract only.*
- 2007f *2007 Annual Report of the Fire Island National Seashore (FIIS) Mosquito Surveillance and Management Program.*
- 2007g *6<sup>th</sup> Biennial Fire Island National Seashore Planning, Science and Research Conference: Abstracts of Presentations May 9-10.*
- 2007h *Fire Island National Seashore, Fire Island Lighthouse First Order Fresnel Lens Return and Display, Environmental Assessment /Assessment of Effect, March 2007.*
- 2007i *Fire Island National Seashore Park Statistics.* Available online at: <http://www.nps.gov/fiis/parkmgmt/statistics.htm>. Accessed December 29, 2008.
- 2008a *Fire Island National Seashore E-Newsletters. June 2006 – Spring 2008.*
- 2008b *A Review of Sediment Budget Estimations at Fire Island National Seashore, New York. Technical Report NPS/NER/NRTR--2008/114. Abstract only.*
- 2008c *Anthropogenic Influences on the Dune/Beach Morphology of a Moderately Developed Barrier Island: Fire Island, New York. Technical Report NPS/NER/NRTR--2008/131. Abstract Only.*
- 2008d *2008 Mosquito Action Plan (MAP) Fire Island National Seashore.*
- 2008e *Fire Island National Seashore Visitor Study Draft Report.*
- 2008f *Fire Island National Seashore Visitor Study.*
- 2008g *FIIS Biotic Resource Synthesis Report.*
- 2008h *Fire Island National Seashore Resident Study.*
- 2008c *Fire Island National Seashore Off-Road Vehicle Regulations Environmental Assessment.*
- 2009a *Fire Island National Seashore Annual Visitation Reports.* Available on the Internet at: <http://www.nature.nps.gov/stats>.
- 2009b *Assessment of Natural Resource Conditions: Fire Island National Seashore. Natural Resources Report NPS/NRPC/NRR – 2009/139.*
- 2011a *Email from Fire Island National Seashore to Vanasse Hangen Brustlin, on August 10, 2011, regarding the operating budget and staffing for fiscal year 2011.*
- 2011b *Economic Benefits to Local Communities from National Park Visitation and Payroll, 2010. Natural Resource Report NPS/NRSS/EQD/NRR – 2011/481. December.*
- 2012 *Fire Island National Seashore Annual Visitation & Monthly Public Use Reports.* Available on the Internet at: <http://www.nature.nps.gov/stats>

National Park Service, U.S. Department of the Interior.

- 1978 *Assessment of Alternatives, William Floyd Estate, Fire Island National Seashore.* Denver Service Center.

National Park Service, U.S. Department of the Interior.

- 2005 *Business Plan, Fiscal Year 2004, Fire Island National Seashore*. Fire Island National Seashore, Patchogue, NY.

National Park Service, U.S. Department of the Interior.

- 2007 *Conserving Ocean and Marine Resources: Northeast Region Ocean Park Strategic Plan*. Prepared by the NER Ocean Stewardship Task Force. National Park Service, Northeast Region.

National Park Service, U.S. Department of the Interior.

- 2004 *Cultural Landscapes Inventory, Fire Island National Seashore*. Compiled 2004. Fire Island National Seashore, Patchogue, New York.

National Park Service, U.S. Department of the Interior.

- 2006 *Cultural Landscapes Inventory, William Floyd Estate, Fire Island National Seashore*. Draft, compiled 2006. Fire Island National Seashore, Patchogue, New York.

National Park Service, U.S. Department of the Interior.

- 1977 *Final Environmental Statement, General Management Plan, Fire Island National Seashore*. Denver Service Center.

National Park Service, U.S. Department of the Interior.

- 1993 *Guiding Principles of Sustainable Design*.

National Park Service, U.S. Department of the Interior.

- 1979 *Historic Resource Study, Fire Island National Seashore, Long Island, N.Y.* Denver Service Center.

National Park Service, U.S. Department of the Interior.

- 1974 *Historic Resource Study, The William Floyd Estate, Fire Island National Seashore*. Denver Service Center.

National Park Service, U.S. Department of the Interior.

- 2007 *Ocean Park Stewardship 2007-2008 Action Plan*. Denver, CO: Water Resources Division.

National Park Service, U.S. Department of the Interior.

- 1992 *Water Resources Scoping Report, Fire Island National Seashore*. (Technical Report NPS/NRWRD/NRTR-92/11). Ft. Collins, CO.: Water Resources Division.

National Park Service, U.S. Department of the Interior.

- 1980 *Wilderness Study/Preliminary Wilderness Proposal*. Fire Island National Seashore, Patchogue, New York.

National Park Service, U.S. Department of the Interior.

- 1983 *Wilderness Management Plan, Fire Island National Seashore*. Fire Island National Seashore, Patchogue, New York.

Natural Resources Conservation Service

- 2007 *National Soil Survey Handbook, Title 43-VI*.



Naugle, R. E., A. T. Rutberg, H. B. Underwood, J. W. Turner, Jr., and I. K. M. Liu.

- 2002 *Field Testing Immunocontraception on White-tailed Deer (Odocoileus virginianus) on Fire Island National Seashore, New York, USA*. Reproduction. Supplement 60:145-153

New York State Climate Office.

- 2009 *The Climate of New York*. Available on the Internet at: [http://nysc.eas.cornell.edu/climate\\_of\\_ny.html](http://nysc.eas.cornell.edu/climate_of_ny.html). Accessed on March 12, 2009.

New York Natural Heritage Program (NYNHP)

- 2007 New York Natural Heritage Program Biotics Database. New York Natural Heritage Program, New York State Department of Environmental Conservation, Albany, NY
- 2013 Rare Animal Status List, New York Natural Heritage Program, New York State Department of Environmental Conservation, Albany NY.

New York State Department of Environmental Conservation

- 2009 Long Island aquifers. Bureau of Water Resources Management. Available on the Internet at: <http://www.dec.ny.gov/lands/36183.html>. Accessed on June 29, 2009.
- 2011 *Management Plan for White-tailed Deer in New York State 2012-2016*. Division of Fish, Wildlife and Marine Resources, Bureau of Wildlife. Available at: [http://www.dec.ny.gov/docs/wildlife\\_pdf/deerplan2012.pdf](http://www.dec.ny.gov/docs/wildlife_pdf/deerplan2012.pdf). Accessed April 2012.

New York State Emergency Management Office.

- 2005 *Hurricane Storm Surge Zones*.

Niedowski, N.L.

- 2000 *New York State Salt Marsh Restoration and Monitoring Guidelines*. New York State Department of State, Division of Coastal Resources, Albany, NY

Nordstrom, K.F., Jackson, N.L., Rafferty, P., Raineault, N.A., and Grafals-Soto, R.

- 2009 *Effects of Bulkheads on Estuarine Shores: an Example from Fire Island National Seashore, USA*. Journal of Coastal Research, SI 56 (Proceedings of the 10<sup>th</sup> International Coastal Symposium), 188-192, Lisbon, Portugal. ISSN 0749-0258

Nordstrom, K.F., and N.L. Jackson.

- 2005 *Bay Shoreline Physical Processes* (Fire Island National Seashore Science Synthesis Paper). Technical Report NPS/NER/NRTR—2005/020. National Park Service. Boston, MA.

Ocean Beach, Village of

- 2010 *Local Waterfront Revitalization Program*, Ocean Beach, New York.

Patel, Monica.

- 2010 *Bayside Shoreline Structures Assessment, Fire Island National Seashore, New York*. (proper citation? – Monica was a George Wright Climate Change Intern).

Pendleton, E.A., Williams, S.J., and Thieler, E.R.

- 2004 Coastal Vulnerability and Assessment of Fire Island National Seashore to Sea-Level Rise, U.S. Geological Survey Open-File Report 03-439 <http://pubs.usgs.gov/of/2003/of03-439/>

Psuty, N.P., M. Grace, and J.P. Pace.

- 2005    *The Coastal Geomorphology of Fire Island: A Portrait of Continuity and Change* (Fire Island National Seashore Science Synthesis Paper). Technical Report NPS/NER/NRTR—2005/021. National Park Service. Boston, MA.

Public Space Research Group of the Center for Human Environments Graduate Center, City University of New York.

- 2006    *Ethnographic Overview and Assessment: Fire Island National Seashore*. Final Report. New York, NY: Taplin, D.H.

Raphael, Jordan.

- 2010    *2010 Mosquito Surveillance and Management Protocol for Fire Island National Seashore*. Fire Island National Seashore. Patchogue, NY.

Raphael, Jordan.

2010.    *2010 Mosquito Action Plan for Fire Island National Seashore*. Fire Island National Seashore. Patchogue, NY.

Raphael, Jordan and Nicole LaSotten.

- 2010    *2010 Annual Report of Fire Island National Seashore (FIIS) Mosquito Surveillance and Management Program*. Fire Island National Seashore. Patchogue, NY.

Raphael, Jordan.

- 2011    *Invasive Plant Inventory and Control Program: Protocols and Workplan for 2011*. Fire Island National Seashore. Patchogue, NY.

Ries, Lindsay, Jennifer Popham, and Mariel Sorlien.

- 2012    *Fire Island National Seashore, Threatened & Endangered Species Monitoring Program 2102 Summary*. Fire Island National Seashore, Patchogue, NY.

Roman, Charles T., J.W. King, D.R. Cahoon, J.C. Lynch, and P.G. Appleby.

- 2007    Evaluation of marsh development processes at Fire Island National Seashore (New York): recent and historic perspectives. Technical Report NPS/NER/NRTR – 2007/089. National Park Service, Boston, MA.

Rosenzweig, C. and W.D. Solecki (Eds.).

- 2001    *Climate Change and a Global City: The Potential Consequences of Climate Variability and Change – Metro East Coast*. Report for the U.S. Global Exchange Research Program, National Assessment of the Potential Consequences of Climate Variability and Change for the United States, Columbia Earth Institute, New York.

Rosenzweig, C., W. Solecki, A. DeGaetano, M. O’Grady, S. Hassol, P. Grabhorn (Eds.).

- 2011    *Responding to Climate Change in New York State: The ClimAID Integrated Assessment for Effective Climate Change Adaptation*. Synthesis Report. New York State Energy Research and Development Authority (NYSERDA), Albany, New York.

Rosenzweig, C., W. Solecki, A. DeGaetano, M. O’Grady, S. Hassol, P. Grabhorn (Eds.).

- 2011    *Responding to Climate Change in New York State: The ClimAID Integrated Assessment for Effective Climate Change Adaptation*. Technical Report. New York State Energy Research and Development Authority (NYSERDA), Albany, New York.

Schubert, C. E.

- 2007 *Analysis of the Shallow Ground-Water Flow System at Fire Island National Seashore, Suffolk County, New York*. U.S. Geological Survey Open-File Report.
- 2009 *Analysis of the Shallow Ground-water Flow System at Fire Island National Seashore, Suffolk County, New York*: U.S. Geological Survey Scientific Investigations Report 2009-5259

Schubert, C.E., deVries, M.P., and Finch, A.J.

- 2010 *Nitrogen loads in groundwater entering back bays and ocean from Fire Island National Seashore, Long Island, New York*: U.S. Geological Survey, Open-File Report 2010-1081.

Schwab, W.C.; Baldwin, W.E.; Hapke, C.J.; Lentz, E.E.; Gayes, P.T.; Denny, J.F.; List, J.H., and Warner, J.C.,

- 2013 *Geologic evidence for onshore sediment transport from the inner continental shelf: Fire Island, New York*. Journal of Coastal Research, 29(3), 526–544. Coconut Creek (Florida), ISSN 0749-0208.

Schwager, K.

- 2002 National Park Service, Fire Island National Seashore, invasive species inventory and mapping project. Unpublished Draft Report. Fire Island National Seashore. Patchogue, NY.

The Shelter Island Tick Task Force.

- xxxx *The Shelter Island Tick Task Force*.

South Shore Estuary Reserve Council, New York Department of State.

- 2001 *Comprehensive Management Plan, Long Island South Shore Estuary Reserve*.

State of New York

- 2001 *Long Island South Shore Estuary Reserve Comprehensive Management Plan*.

Stats Indiana

- 2012 *USA Counties in Profile*. Available on the Internet at: <http://www.stats.indiana.edu/>. Accessed on July 2, 2012.

Suffolk County.

- xxxx *Long Island Mosquito Ecology*.
- xxxx Suffolk County Transit System Map
- 1995. *Standards Approval of Plans and Construction – Sewage Disposal Systems for Single-Family Residences*.
- 2003 *Impact of the Atlantic Ocean Beaches to the Economy of Suffolk County*, prepared by the Suffolk County Budget Review Office
- 2006a *Suffolk County Vector Control and Wetlands Management Long Term Plan & Environmental Impact Statement*.
- 2006b *Suffolk County Vector Control and Wetlands Management Revised Long Term Plan*.

Tanski, Jay, Bokuniewicz, Henry, and Schlenk, Cornelia

- 2001 *Impacts of Barrier Island Breaches on Selected Biological Resources of Great South Bay, New York*. State University of New York, Stony Brook, NY.

Tilghman, N. G.

- 1989 “Impacts of White-tailed Deer on Forest Regeneration in Northwestern Pennsylvania.” *Journal of Wildlife Management* 53:524-32.

## Trocki, Carol Lynn

- 2008 *Draft Northeast Coastal Barrier Network Biotic Resource Synthesis Report for Fire Island National Seashore.*

## Underwood, H.B.

- 2005 White-tailed Deer Ecology and Management on Fire Island National Seashore (Fire Island National Seashore Science Synthesis Paper). Technical Report NPS/NER/NRTR—2005/022. National Park Service. Boston, MA.

## U.S. Army Corps of Engineers

- xxxx *Fire Island Inlet to Montauk Point Reformulation Study: Breach/Overwash Position Paper.*
- xxxx *Draft Environmental Assessment: Atlantic Coast of Long Island, Fire Island Inlet to Montauk Point, New York West of Shinnecock Inlet: Interim Plan for Storm Damage Protection.*
- 1997 *Environmental Scoping Document Atlantic Coast of Long Island Fire Island Inlet to Montauk Point, New York Storm Damage Reduction Reformulation Study.*
- 1998 *Atlantic Coast of Long Island, Fire Island Inlet to Montauk Point Alternatives Screening Report.*
- 1999a *Comparative Study of Beach Invertebrates on the Westhampton Barrier Island.*
- 1999b *Atlantic Coast of Long Island, Fire Island Inlet to Montauk Point Interim Progress Memorandum: Summary of Data Gap Identification and Overview of Proposed Data Collection Efforts.*
- 1999c *Fire Island Inlet to Montauk Point, Long Island, New York Reach 1: Draft Decision Document: An Evaluation of an Interim Plan for Storm Damage Protection.*
- 1999d *Atlantic Coast of Long Island, Fire Island Inlet to Montauk Point, New York Storm Damage Reduction Reformulation Study: Water Quality Monitoring.*
- 2000a *Atlantic Coast of Long Island, Fire Island Inlet to Montauk Point, New York: Reformulation Study: West of Shinnecock Inlet Multispecies Sampling.*
- 2000b *Atlantic Coast of Long Island, Fire Island Inlet to Montauk Point New York Storm Damage Reduction Reformulation Study: Baymen Interviews.*
- 2000c *Eastern Ecological Zone Finfish Creel Survey.*
- 2001 *Benthic Invertebrate Survey: Napeeague to East of Fire Island Inlet.*
- 2002a *Atlantic Coast of Long Island, Fire Island Inlet to Montauk Point, New York Storm Damage Reduction Reformulation Study Intertidal Wetland and Estuarine Finfish Survey of the Backbays.*
- 2002b *Atlantic Coast of Long Island, Fire Island Inlet to Montauk Point, New York Storm Damage Reduction Reformulation Study Surf Clam Stock Assessment.*
- 2002c *Montauk Point, New York: Reformulation Study: West of Shinnecock Inlet and Cherry Grove Multispecies Sampling.*
- 2003a *Final Benthic Invertebrate Survey: Eastern Shore Zone Survey.*
- 2003b *Moriches Bay 2003 Hard Clam Growth Rat Study: Final Summary Report.*
- 2003c *Reformulation of the Shore Protection and Storm Damage Reduction Project South Shore of Long Island, New York – Fire Island Inlet to Montauk Point: Final Avian Survey Summary Report May 2002 – May 2003.*
- 2004a *Draft Benthic Invertebrate Survey: East of Shinnecock Inlet to East of Fire Island Inlet.*
- 2004b *Compilation and Comparative Analysis of Physical and Biological Characteristics of Available Sand Sources.*
- 2004c *Phase 2 Development of the Conceptual Ecosystem Model for the Fire Island Inlet to Montauk Point Study Area.*

- 2004d *Reformulation of the Shore Protection and Storm Damage Reduction Project South Shore of Long Island, New York, Fire Island Inlet to Montauk Point: Final Small Mammal and Herpetile Survey Summary Report May – August 2002.*
- 2004e *Atlantic Coast of Long Island, Fire Island Inlet to Montauk Point, New York: Reformulation Study: Submerged Aquatic Vegetation (SAV) Bed Characterization: Phase I and II.*
- 2005 *Atlantic Coast of Long Island, Fire Island Inlet to Montauk Point, New York: Reformulation Study: Beach and Intertidal Invertebrate Survey.*
- 2006a *Phase 3 Development of the Conceptual Ecosystem Model for the Fire Island Inlet to Montauk Point Study Area.*
- 2006b *The Built Environment Along Long Island's South Shore: Historic Resource Study.*
- 2006c *Atlantic Coast of Long Island, Fire Island Inlet to Montauk Point (FIMP), New York, Storm Damage Reduction Project, Submergent Aquatic Vegetation (SAV) Evaluation Report.*

U.S. Department of Agriculture.

- 2008 Soil Data

U.S. Department of Commerce: Bureau of Economic Analysis

- 2006. Economic Data

U.S. Census Bureau

- 2000 U.S. Census Bureau website (<http://factfinder.census.gov/>). Accessed June 1, 2009.
- 2000a U.S. Census Bureau website (<http://censtats.census.gov>). Accessed January 30, 2013.
- 2010a U.S. Census Bureau website (<http://factfinder2.census.gov/>). Accessed July 3, 2012.
- 2010b 2006-2010 *American Community Survey*. Nassau County, New York. Available on the Internet at: <http://factfinder2.census.gov/>. Access July 2, 2012.
- 2010c U.S. Census Bureau website (<http://factfinder2.census.gov/>). Accessed January 29, 2013.

U.S. Department of Transportation

- xxxx *Fire Island National Seashore ATS Needs Assessment.*
- 2001 *Fire Island National Seashore Waterborne Transportation System Plan.*
- 2005 *Fire Island National Seashore Survey of Walk-in Visitors.*
- 2006 *Fire Island National Seashore Lateral Ferry Survey.*
- 2009 *National Census of Ferry Operators Database.* Available on the Internet at: <http://www.transtats.bts.gov>. Last accessed July 14, 2009.

U.S. Department of Transportation.

- 2005 *Fire Island National Seashore Survey of Walk-in Visitors.* Cambridge, MA: Research and Innovative Technology Administration, John A. Volpe National Transportation Systems Center.

U.S. Department of Transportation.

- 2006 *Fire Island National Seashore Lateral Ferry Survey.* Cambridge, MA: Research and Innovative Technology Administration, John A. Volpe National Transportation Systems Center.

U.S. Department of Transportation.

- 2006 *Fire Island National Seashore Waterborne Transportation System Plant.* Cambridge, MA: Research and Special Programs Administration, John A. Volpe National Transportation Systems Center.

U.S. Department of Transportation

- 2011 *Fire Island National Seashore: Alternative Transportation Study.* Cambridge, MA. Research and Innovative Technology Administration, John A. Volpe National Transportation Systems Center.

## U.S. Geological Survey

- 2004 *Coastal Vulnerability Assessment of Fire Island National Seashore (FIIS) to Sea-Level Rise.*
- 2008 *Inventory of Data Sources Used for Watershed Condition Assessments of Fire Island National Seashore, Gateway National Recreation Area, and Sagamore Hill National Historic Site, New York and New Jersey.*
- 2009 *Active Groundwater Level Network: Suffolk County, New York.* Available on the Internet at: [http://groundwaterwatch.usgs.gov/countymaps/NY\\_103.html](http://groundwaterwatch.usgs.gov/countymaps/NY_103.html). Accessed on June 29, 2009.

## Villalba, Fernando.

- 2008 *Tick Population Monitoring & Management Protocol for the William Floyd Estate, Fire Island National Seashore.* Fire Island National Seashore. Patchogue, NY.

## The Weather Channel

- 2011 January and February 2011 and monthly average weather conditions for Fire Island National Seashore, New York. Available on the Internet at: <http://www.weather.com>. Accessed February 25, 2011.

## Whitaker, J. O. and W. J. Hamilton

- 1998 *Mammals of the Eastern United States, Third Edition.* Cornell University Press. Ithaca, NY.

[Wilderness.net](http://www.wilderness.net)

- 2012 *Otis Pike Fire Island High Dune Wilderness.* University of Montana. Accessed online August 2, 2012.

## Wilson, R. E., Wong, K. C., and Carter, H. H.,

- 1991, *Aspects of circulation and exchange in Great South Bay*, In: Schubel, J. R., Bell, T. M., Carter, H. H. (Eds.), *The Great South Bay*. State University of New York Press, Stony Brook, New York, p. 9-22.



---

## WEBSITES CONSULTED

### Bird and Nature

- 2009 *North American Migration Flyways*. Available on the Internet at: <http://www.birdnature.com/flyways.html>. Accessed on June 29, 2009.

### Center for Disease Control

- 2010 *Ticks*. Available on the internet at: <http://www.cdc.gov/ticks/>. Accessed on April 9, 2010.

### Fire Island National Seashore, [www.nps.gov/fiis](http://www.nps.gov/fiis)

National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration, Office of Coastal and Resource Management, [www.coastalmanagement.noaa.gov](http://www.coastalmanagement.noaa.gov)

### Stats Indiana

- 2009 *USA Counties in Profile*. Available on the Internet at: <http://www.stats.indiana.edu/>. Accessed on June 1, 2009.

### The Weather Channel

- 2011 January and February 2011 and monthly average weather conditions for Fire Island National Seashore, New York. Available on the Internet at: <http://www.weather.com>. Accessed February 25, 2011.

### U.S. Census Bureau

- 2010 *American Community Survey*. [http://factfinder2.census.gov/faces/nav/jsf/pages/community\\_facts.xhtml#none](http://factfinder2.census.gov/faces/nav/jsf/pages/community_facts.xhtml#none). Accessed on November 2, 2013.
- 2007 *2005-2007 American Community Survey*. Available on the Internet at: [http://factfinder.census.gov/home/saff/main.html?\\_lang=en](http://factfinder.census.gov/home/saff/main.html?_lang=en). Accessed on June 1, 2009.
- 2000 U.S. Census Bureau website (<http://factfinder.census.gov/>). Accessed June 1, 2009.

### U.S. Green Building Council, [www.usgbc.org](http://www.usgbc.org)